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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' R RT

To the Members of M/s Best Crop Science Private Limited
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s Best Crop Science Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss,
and Cash Flows Statement for the year ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and profit and its cash flows for the period ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the director’'s report but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The director’s report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the director’s report, if we conclude that there is a material mis

required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and

applicable under the relevant laws and regulations. /
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Responsibility of Management for Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section
133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Therisk of notdetecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclasures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidep€e\OB




auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the
Annexure A statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that; to the extent applicable;

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2024, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2024
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, we give our separate Reportin “Annexure 2",

g) The provision of section 197 read with schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the company for the
period ended 31st March, 2024; and

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations in its financial position in its
Standalone Financial Statements. Refer note no. __ to the Standalone Financial Statement.

i,  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii, There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company.




iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or
entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company  (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v.  Asthe company has not declared and paid any dividend during the financial year and hence
provision of Section 123 of the Act, is not applicable.

Vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended 31+ March, 2024
w.e.f. 03¢ August, 2023 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated after that date for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail
feature being tempered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from 01%t
April, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not
applicable for the financial year ended 31t March, 2024.

No. 537894

Place: New Delhi
Date: 2374 May, 2024
UDIN: 24537894BKGFRV6688



ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement” section
of our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the financial statements for the
period ended March 31, 2023, we report that:

i. In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the Management during the
period and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(¢c) The title deeds of immovable properties recorded in the books of accounts of the company are
held in the name of the Company or in the name of LLP (as the company has been converted
from LLP).

(d) The Company has revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the period. The valuation
of the property is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the period or are pending against the Company as at
March 31, 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(a) The Company has done physical verification of Inventories within reasonable intervals.

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of 5 crore, in aggregate,
during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets,
the quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such banks or financial
institutions are in agreement with the books of account of the Company.

(a) The Company has provided loans and guarantee to fellow subsidiaries during the year as per
details given below;
(Figures in Millions)

Particulars Guarantee Loans
Aggregate amount

provided/granted during the

year:

-Fellow Subsidiaries - 237.71

Balance outstanding as at
balance sheet date in respect of
above cases:

-Fellow Subsidiaries - 237.71

(b) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of
repayment of principal and the payment of interest has not been stipulated and accordingly, we are
unable to comment as to whether the repayments/receipts of principal interest are regular.

(c) In the absence of stipulated schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest in respect
of loans and advances in the nature of loans, we are unable to comment as to whether there is any
amount which is overdue for more than 90 days. Reasonable steps have been taken by the Company
for recovery of such principal amounts and interest.

(d) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the C the schedule of
repayment of principal has not been stipulated. According to the informafi
to us, such loans have not been demanded for repayment as on date.
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vil.

viii.

(e) The Company has granted loans which are repayable on demand, as per details below:
(Figures in Millions)

Particulars All Parties Promoters Related Parties
Aggregate of

loans/advances in

nature of loan

-Repayable on demand 237.71 - 237.71
(A)

-Agreement does not - 2 .
specify any terms or
period of repayment

(B)
Total (A+B) 237.71 - 237.71
Percentage of 100% - 100%

loans/advances in the
nature of loan to the
total loans

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Act in respect of loans and investments made and
guarantee provided by it, as applicable. Further, the Company has not entered into any transaction
covered under Section 185 of the Act and 186 of the Act in respect of security.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Section 73, 74,
75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified. Hence reporting under
clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section
148 of the Act in respect of the products of the Company. We have broadly reviewed the books of
account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for the
maintenance of cost records and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and
records have been made and maintained. However, we have not made a detailed examination of the
cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

According to the information and explanation given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues as applicable to it, including provident fund, Employees State
Insurance, income tax, goods and service tax, and other material statutory dues with the
appropriate authorities.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, Employees State Insurance, income tax, goods and service tax, and
other material statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six
months from the date they become payable.

b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no dues of income-tax, goods and services tax which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the period in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43
0f 1961).




Xi.

Xil.

xiii.
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XV.

applicable to the Company.

(a)  The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(b)  The Company has utilized the term loan during the period for the purpose it was obtained and
hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

() The Company has not raised any funds on short term basis. Hence reporting under clause
3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has no subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Hence reporting under clause
3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e)  The Company has no subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during the period and hence
reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the period and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the period, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
During the period.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-
4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government, during the period and upto the date of this report.

(¢) Asrepresented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
company during the period.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not

applicable.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details
have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting
standards. The provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly reporting
under clause 3(xiii) insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to
the Company and hence not commented upon.

(a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an internal audit system.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the company
during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

[n our opinion during the period the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its

Directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisiens of section 192 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. /l—“n
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Xviii,

XiX.

XX,

(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause
3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial period covered by our audit and the
immediately preceding financial period.

There has been no resignation of Statutory Auditors of the Company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, ageing of trade receivables has come to our attention, which
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report. That may not
be indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has transferred amounts
towards Corporate Social Responsibility in respect of other than ongoing projects to a Fund specified in
Schedule VII to the Act as required under second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said
Act.

nar.
N o/
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“ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF M/S BEST CROP SCIENCE PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/S Best Crop Science Private
Limited (“the Company") as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the period ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with

Som A aroS



Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
atMarch 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For K Sumit & Co.
Chartered Acgguntants
FRN 036229

Place: New Delhi
Date: 2374 May, 2024



vt Crop Science Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st Mar 2024
(INR in Millions, unless stated otherwise)
CIN : U24299DL2021PTC385735

5 As at As at
CAI— Hota 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3A 946.26 588.07
Capital work-in-progress 3B 43.80 72.16
Right-of-use assets 3C 395.22 356.79
Intangible asset 4 0.95 0.64
Intangible asset under development 5 0.25 0.10
Financial assets

(i} Other financial assets 6 13.45 4.27
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 16 - -
Other non-current assets 7 19.43 237.70
Total non-current assets 1,419.34 1,259.73
Current assets
Inventories 8 2,735.97 2,357.14
Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 9 1,337.97 1,161.23

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 3.63 38.41

(iii) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 11 33.76 13.52
(iv) Loans 12 237.711 -

(v) Other financial assets 6 1.16 1.37
Other current asset 7 156.05 163.86
Total current assets 4,506.25 3,735.54
Total assets 5,925.59 4,995.27
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 13 68.50 68.50
Other equity 14 2,053.31 1,654.82
Total equity 2,121.81 1,723.32
Liabilities 212.18
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 15 178.50 250.73
Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 16 161.70 107.31
Provisions 17 6.99 6.17
Total non-current liabilities 347.20 364.20
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 15 1,436.70 1,775.02

(i) Trade payables 18

(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterp 2,000.11 1,091.16

(iii) Other financial liabilities 19 15.93 11.16
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 20 26.18
Other current liabilities 21 2.78 3.36
Provisions 17 1.06 0.89
Total current liabilities 3,456.58 2,907.76
Total equity and liabilities 5,925.59 4,995.27
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Best Crop Science Prwaifor eéisI CFOD Science Ltd.
For Best Crop Science Pyt Ltd.
— Director
Vimal Kuj Gaurav Sharma
Director Bﬂecror Director

DIN: 01260082
Place: New Delhi
Date: 23/May/2024

Place: New Delhi
Date: 23/May/2024

DIN: 06531102
Place: New Delhi
Date: 23/May/2024



Best Crop Science Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31 Mar 2024
(INR in Millions, except for share data and if otherwise stated)
CIN: U24299DL2021PTC385735

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For and on

For Best Crop s

Date: 23/May/2024

: For the Quarter ended For the year ended
Particutars ke 31 March 2024 31-Mar-2023
Income
Revenue from operations 22 8,573.23 5,723.98
Other income 23 1.27 0.84
Total income 8,574.50 5,724.82
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 24 8,529.16 3,984 .25
Changes in inventories of finished goods and wWIp 24A (1,057.13) (85.60)
Employee benefits expense 25 16431 111.31
Finance costs 26 127.00 155.69
Depreciation and amortisation expense 27 130.30 78.44
Other expenses 28 410.40 319.18
Total expenses 8,304.03 4,563.27
Profit/ (Loss) before execptional items and tax 270.46 1,161.55
Exceptional items -

Profit/ (Loss) before tax 270.46 1,161.55
Tax expense
Current tax 87.86 301.48
Deferred tax (14.21) (6.16)
Tax previous year 2.31
Total tax expense 75.96 295,31
Profit/ (Loss) for the period 194.50 866.24
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Revaluation of Immovable properties 271.10 469.06
Tax impact on remeasurement of revaluation of immovable properties (68.23) (118.05)

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (Net of

Taxes) 1.50 (1.52)

Income tax relating to above mentioned item (0.38) 0.38
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the period 203.99 349.88
Total comprehensive Profit/(loss) for the period 398.50 1,216.11
Profit/(loss) per equity share of face value of INR 10/ each
Basic (INR) 58.17 177.53
Diluted (INR) 58.17 177.53

I

>Clence Pyt Ltd.

.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Best Crop Scienck BHy. *i@d'Op sClence Pvt,

C — rector
Vimal RuniaF Gaurav SWarma

Director Director

DIN: 01260082 DIN: 06531102

Place: New Delhj Place: New Delhj

Date: 23/May/2024 Date: 23/May/2024




Best Crop Science Private Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on 31st Mar 24
(INR in Millions, except for share data and if otherwise stated)
CIN : U24299DL2021PTC385735

For the year ended For the period ended
Particulars 31 Mar 2024 31 March 2023

A. Cash flows from operating activities

Profit/(Loss) before tax 270.46 1,161.55
Adjustments for

Depreciation and amortisation expense 130.30 7844
Impairment loss of non-financial assets

Liabilities no longer required written back 499 (0.50)
Discount

Finance costs 127.00 155.69
Expenses related to post- employment defined benefit plan 249 1.56
Interest income (091) (0.34)
Operating profit before working capital changes 53433 1,396.42
Adjustments for changes in:

- trade receivables (176.73) (398.39)
- Inventories (378.83) (252.17)
- other financial assets 9.17) (258.34)
- loans and other assets 1031 (1.33)
- trade payables 893.90 246.50
- other financial liabilities 477 6.07
- other liabilities (331) (395.14)
- provisions 0.99 760
Cash generated from operating activities 876.26 351.22
Income tax (paid)/refund (net) 1699 (270.00)
Net cash generated from operating activities 893.25 81.22

B. Cash flows from investing activities
Payment for property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets acquired under business combination

Payment for property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets - (371.18) (108.88)
Deposits made with banks (20.23) (12.249)
Proceeds from maturity of deposits 2.54
Interest received 0.91 0.34
Purchase of non-current investments -
Loans given -
Repayment of loans received -
Net cash used in investing activities {390.50) (118.24)

C. Cash flows from financing activities#
Repayment of long term borrowings

Proceeds from long term borrowings (410.54) (56.60)
Proceeds from/(repayment of) current borrowings (net) 287.45
Payment of lease liabilities- interest
Interest paid (127.00) (155.69)
Net cash (used in)/ generated from financing activities (537.54) 75.16
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the year (A+B+C) (34.79) 38.14
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalent held in foreign currency
D. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 38.41 0.27
E. Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year (refer note 10 & 11) 3.63 3841
Notes:

1. The Standalone Cash Flow Statement has been prepared in accordance with 'Indirect method' as set out in the Ind AS - 7 on 'Statement of Cash Flaws', as notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with the relevant rules thereunder

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Best Crop Science mi o
For Best Crop Science Pvt. Ltd_F‘BFB’@é’t Crop Scie

| W

Vlﬂﬁwor Gaurav Sharma DIreCtor
Dirétto Director

DIN: 01260082 DIN: 06531102

Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi

Date: 23/May/2024 Date: 23/May/2024  Date: 23/May/2024
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JP SCIENCE PRIVATE LIMITED
es to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 Mar 2024

Corporate information

Best Crop Science Private Limited ('the Company) is a private limited company domiciled in India and incorporated on 28
August 2021 under the provisions of the Companies Act,2013 applicable in India having corporate identification number
U24299D1.2021PTC385735.

The company is engaged in the business of manufacturing agro chemicals (Herbicides, pesticides, etc). Registered office of
the Company 1s siruated at B-4, First floor Bhagwan Dass Nagar, Fast Punjabi Bagh, Delhi West Delhi DL 110026, India.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of Preparation

The Company has been formed on 28 Aug 2021 and Company has voluntarily adopted to comply with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time).
This Standalone balance Sheet of the Company has been prepared to comply with Ind AS and presentation requirements of
Division 1T of Schedule 111 to the Compantes Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule I1T), as applicable to the Balance Sheet.

The standalone balance sheet has been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for the following assets and liabilities.

1) Certain financial assets and labilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).
1) Defined benefir liabilities are measured at present value of defined benefit obligation
i) Certain financial assets and habilities at amortised cost

Historical cost 15 generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value 1s
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction berween market participants

at the measurement date.

The Balance Sheet is presented in INR Millions “(Indian Rupees in millions)” or “Z in Millions”. All values are rounded to the

nearest Rupee, and two decimals thereof, except when otherwise indicated.

Significant judgements, accounting estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s Balance Sheet in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and lhabilities,
and the accompanying disclosures (including contingent liabilities). The management believes that the estimates used in
preparation of the balance sheet is prudent and reasonable. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result

in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or habilities affected in future periods.

The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the balance sheet was prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
ansing that are beyvond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. In the
process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, estimates and

assumptions, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the Opening Balance Sheet:

i) Estimation of defined benefit obligation

Employee benefit obligations are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments. These include the estimation of the appropriatc
discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and 1ts
long-

nature, the employee benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All

iaffs e reviewed at each reporting date.

Q
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NCE PRIVATE LIMITED
\dalone financial statements for the year ended 31°' Mar 2024

The operating cvcle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash

equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.
Dividend

The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when the
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in
India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly

in other equity.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

An ttem of property, plant and equipment recognized as an asset if and only 1f it 1s probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Items of capital work
in progress and property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impatrment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing the asset, inclusive of non-refundable
taxes and duties, to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful life, they are recognized
separately. Items of spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment which meet the definition of property, plant
and equipment are capitalized. Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of balance

sheet are disclosed as 'capital work-in-progress’.

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection
is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition

criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.
Depreciation

Deprectation is recognized in the statement of profit or loss on a written down value over the estimated useful life of each
item of property, plant and equipment. Depreciation on additions to/deductions from property, plant and equipment during

the year 1s charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asser is available for use/disposed.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on their estimated useful life as prescribed by Schedule 11 of

Companies Act, 2013 as follows:

Class of PPE Useful Life
Building 30
Plant & Machinery — Chimney 15
Furniture & Fixture 10
Plant & Machinery — Lab

equipment, Air Conditioner 10
Plant & Machinery — Boiler 8
Vehicles 8
Office Equipment 5
Computer & Printer 3

An ttem of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recogmition of the asset

) 3
(calculated a&.the d

f?‘f(i ce between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the

/ = 4 5 "
statement af, 1t andNgEs\when the asset is derecognised.

ef
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ii)

iii)

iv)

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the
management considers the interest rates of government bonds with term that correspond with the expected term of
the defined benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval
in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future

inflation rates for the respective countries.
Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future rax
planning strategies.

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets

Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment and intangibles
at the end of each reporting period. Factors such as changes in the expected level of usage could significantly impact
the economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets. Consequently, the future depreciation charge could
be revised and may have an impact on the profit of the future years.

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by appropriate allowances
for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are written off when management believes that
there 1s uncertainty of collections. Provision is recognised based on the expected credit losses, which are the present
value of the cash shortfall over the expected life of the financial assets.

Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities i the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. An asset 1s

current when 1t s

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

[Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period.

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting pertod.

Current assets include current portion of non-current of financial assets.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A lability is current when 1t is:

Deferred g
fle

Fxpected to be settled in normal operating cycle
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period

There is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

Current liabilities includes current portion of non-current financial liabilities.

/-
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PRIVATE LIMITED

The existing realizable values of tangible assets are 5% as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act,
2013.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if approprate.

Intangible assets
Recognition and measurement

[ntangible assets include software and trademarks, that are acquired by the Company, that are measured 1nitally at cost.
After initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated

impatrment loss, 1f any.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset 1s
derecogmsed.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of intangible asset is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits
from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard or period of performance. All other expenses are charged to

the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year during which such expenses are incurred.
Amortisation

Intangible assets include software and trademarks that are amortised over the useful economic life of 3 to 6 years and 10
years respectively. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are

reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred rax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-
generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell.
Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that

reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the assct).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU s
allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

In respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting
date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent

does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation
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BEST CROP S NCE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31% Mar 2024

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Stock-in-trade:
Cost: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condinon. Cost 1s determined on First in First Out (FIFO) basts.

Net realisable value (NRV): NRV is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of

completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturiry of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value.

I'or the purpose of the standalone statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits,
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash

Iﬂkll]ilge[ﬂ('.‘llf.

Financial instruments
Recognition and initial measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial Lability of another ennity.
Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A financial instrument is
measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss

(FV'TPL) which are measured initally at fair value.
Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortised cost or at FVTPL. Financial assets are not
reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model for

managing financial assets,

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designarted as at
FNTPL:
~ the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FV'TPL.

For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either as at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). On initial recognition, the Company may
irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost at FVTPL if

aficantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.




SCIENCE PRIVATE LIMITED

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio
level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The information

constdered mcludes:

the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies n practice. These include
whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a partcular interest rate
profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related hiabilities or expected cash outflows
or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's management;

~ the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model)
and how those risks are managed; '

- how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets
managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and tming of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and

expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales for

this purpose, consistent with the Company's continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis arc

measured at FNTPL.
Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. 'Interest’
i« defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit nisk associated with the principal amount
outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative

costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers the
contractual rerms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term thar
could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this
assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including rariable interest rate features;

- prepavment and extension features; and

~ terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment amount
substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Additionally, for a
financial asser acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires
prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual
interest is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial
recognition. Financial assets at amortised cost are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest

income recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Fimancial  assets  at | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
FVTPL interest or dividend income, are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

}'nu}ucﬁﬂi 'l."ns( s

at | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income, are recognised 1n OCL.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective nterest
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SCIENCE PRIVATE LIMITED
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31°' Mar 2024

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio
level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information 1s provided to management. The informaton

constdered includes:

~ the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These include

whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate
profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related habilities or expected cash outflows
or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;
how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model)
and how those risks are managed; i
how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets
managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales for

this purpose, consistent with the Company's continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are

measured at FNTPL,
Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. 'Interest’
is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount
outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative
costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers the
contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that
could change the fiming or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this
assessment, the Company considers:

~ contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including rariable interest rate features;

- prepavment and extension features; and

~ terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

A prepavment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment amount

substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Additionally, for a
financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires
prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual
interest is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial
recognition. Financial assets at amortised cost are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest

income recognised in Starement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial  assets  at | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
FNTPL interest or dividend income, are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

at | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income, are recognised 1n OCL.

at | These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
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E stand financial statements for the year ended 31 Mar 2024

exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FA"TPL 1f 1t
is classified as held for trading. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including
any interest expense, are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Ovther financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity Investments
All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and
contingent consideration recogmsed by an acquirer in a business combinaton to which Ind AS-103 applies are classificd as

at EV'TPL. There are no such investments in the Company.

Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or
it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset. If the Company enters into transactions
whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards

of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.
Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. The
Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modificd terms are
substantally different. In this case, a new financial ]iabilit}' based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The
difference benween the carrying amount of the financial Lability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified

rerms 18 recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of Financial Assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition
of impairment loss on the Financial assets that are debt instruments and are initially measured art fair value with subsequent
measurement at amortised cost e.g. Trade receivables, Security Deposits etc. The company follows ‘simplified approach’ for
recognition of impairment loss allowance for trade receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the
.Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition. For recognition of impairment loss on other financial asscts and sk
exposure, the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition.
If credit risk has not increased significantly, twelve-month ECL 1s used to provide for impairment loss. However, 1f credit
risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in the subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves
such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts ro recognising
impairment loss allowance based on a twelve-month ECL. ECL is the difference berween all contractual cash flows that are
duc 1o the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (ic., all cash
shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR,

In case of Trade Receivahtesyinss allowance on Trade Receivables is provided at NIL rate basis historical trend of write offs
\

impairment loss, /\
.
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Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis to realise the assets

and settle the liabilites simultaneously.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures cerfain financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the fransaction

1o sell the asset or transfer the lability takes place either:

L in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
1. in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing

the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

\ fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate €conomic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the assct

in irs highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumsrances and for which sufficient data are available

to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

Al assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the opening Balance Sheet are categotised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as

a whole:

8 Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

‘ Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 1s
directly or indirectly observable

. Ievel 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 1s
unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Opening Balance Sheet on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether rransfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting pertod.

At each reporting date, the Company’s management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analyss, the Company’s
management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the informaton in the valuation

compuration fo contracts and other relevant documents.

The Company’s management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external

sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purposc of | osures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the

\
nature, clmrncrcri:‘ﬁﬁs‘ asset or lability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
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Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent asscts

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it 1s
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The

expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

[f the effect of the ime value of money 1s material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the nisks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of
ume 1s recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly with in the
control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle, or reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Therefore, in order to determine
the amount to be recognised as a liability or to be disclosed as a contngent hability, in each case, is inherently subjective,
and needs careful evaluation and judgement to be applied by the management. In case of provision for lingations, the
judgements involved are with respect to the potential exposure of each litigation and the likelihood and/or timing of cash

outflows from the Company and requires interpretation of laws and past legal rulings.

Possible inflows of economic benefits to the Company that do not yet meet the recognition criteria of an assef are considered

contingent assefs.
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenue
can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Amount of sales are net of goods and service tax,
sale returns, rrade allowances and discounts. The Company recognises revenue as and when goods are dispatched from the

factory.

To determine wherher to recognize revenue, the company follows a 5-step process:

. ldenutving the contract with a customer

2. Idennfying the performance obligations

3. Determining the transaction price

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations

5. Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied.

The Company considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practice to determine the transaction price. In
all cases, the total transaction price is allocated amongst the various performance obligations based on their relative
standalone selling price. The transaction price excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The consideration
promised include fixed amounts, variable amounts, or both. Revenue is recognised either at a point in time, when the

company satisfies performance obligations by transferring the promised goods to its customers.

A receivable is recognised where the Company's right to consideration is unconditional (i.e., any passage of time is required
before payment if the consideration is due). When either party to a contract has performed, an entity shall present the
contract in the balance sheet as contract asset or contract liability, depending on the relationship between the entiny's

performance and the customer's payment,

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company

s
and the ‘.unnum‘,g(‘p}c an be measured reliably. Interest is accrued on time proportion basis, by reference to the

principle nulsrnr‘?ﬂi:ﬁgf; f &
A,
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PRIVATE LIMITED
one financial statements for the year ended 31 Mar 2024

Dividends
Income from dividend on investments is accrued in the year in which it is declared, whereby the Company’s right to receive
1s established.

Other income

All other income 1s recognized on accrual basis when no significant uncertainty exists on their receipt.
Assets held for sale

Non-current assets (including disposal groups) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through contunuing use and a sale 1s considered highly probable. Non-

current asscts classified as held for sale are measured at lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are presented separately from the other assets and liabilities in the Standalone
Balance Sheet.

Foreign currency conversions/transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transactions. Gains and losses
ansing out of subsequent fluctuations are accounted for on actual payments or realisations, as the case may be. Monetary
assets and habilines denominated 1n foreign currency as on balance sheet date are translated into functional currency at the
exchange rates prevailing on thar date and exchange differences arising out of such conversion are recognised in the

statement of profir and loss.

1) Taxes

[ncome tax expense for the vear comprises of current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss except to the extent it relates to any business combination or to an item which is recognised directly in equity or in
other comprehensive income.

1)  Current tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax
authorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Company
operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (cither in other
comprehensive income or in equity) are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly
in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable rax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropnate.

u)  Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utihized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no
longer probable tha ient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be unlized.
Unrecognized def#
become prof

I jft\




PRIVATE LIMITED
. financial statements for the year ended 31°' Mar 2024

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside statement of profit or loss is recognized outside statement of profit
or loss. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

m) Employee benefits

\

1)

it

i11)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service
15 pm\'idcd. A liabiliry 1s recogniscd for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, 1f the
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
emplovee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Post-employment benefits

Employee benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the
provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the
scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to
the scheme 1s recognized as a lability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid
exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset

to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.
The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India.
The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuaral gains and losses, are recognised in OCL
The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit Liability or the period by applving
the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then net
defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result
of benefit payments.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
e The date of the plan amendment or curtallment, and

e The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability. The Company recognises the
following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the standalone statement of profir and loss:

e  Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-

routine settlements; and

e Ner interest expense or income.

Compensated absences

Ieave entitlements lapse with the end of the year. Therefore, the Company does not determine any liability for such

leave entitlements.

ed by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders of the
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slone financial statements for the year ended 31% Mar 2024

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus
the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares

nto equity shares.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That 1s, if the contract conveys the

right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing
the right to use the underlying assets

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying assert 1s
available for use). Righr-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of nght-of-use assets includes the amount of lease Labilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the

estimated useful hives of the assets.
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, vanable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain 1o be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the”

p’.l_\'iT]L‘lH OCCurs.

[n calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the lease pavments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine

such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-

rerm leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basts over the lease term.

Government grants_—

v I\

Government gianf; where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached

conditions will lgg s Q venue grants are recognized over periods to which they relate.
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Amended Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and interpretations effective during the year

Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments; Ind AS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and Ind AS 116 Leases
(amendments related to Interest Rate Benchmark Reform)

The amendment to Ind AS 109, provides a practical expedient for assessment of contractual cash flow test, which is one of
the criteria for being eligible to measure a financial asset at amortized cost, for the changes in the financial assets that may
arise as a result of Interest Rate Benchmark Reform. An additional temporary exception from applying hedge accounting is
also added for Interest Rate Benchmark Reform.

The amendment to Ind AS 107, clarifies the certain additional disclosures to be made on account of Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform:

e the nature and extent of risks to which the entity is exposed arising from financial instruments subject to interest
rate benchmark reform;

e the entity‘s progress in completing the transition to alternative benchmark rates, and how the entity is managing
the transition;

e the instruments exposed to benchmark reform disaggregated by significant interest rate benchmark along with
qualitative information about the financial instruments that are yet to transition to alternative benchmark rate;

e changes to entity’s risk management strategy.

The amendments introduced a similar practical expedient in Ind AS 116. Accordingly, while accounting for lease
modification i.e. remeasuring the lease lability, in case this is required by interest rate benchmark reform, the lessee will use
a revised discount rate that reflects the changes in the interest rate.

These amendments did not have any material impact on the financial statements of the Group.
Ind AS 116 Leases (amendment related to rent concessions arising due to COVID-19 pandemic)

The amendment to Ind AS 116 Leases extended the practical expedient introduced for financial year 2020-21 related to rent
concessions arising due to Covid-19 pandemic, that provides an option to the lessee to choose that rent concessions for
lease payments due on or before 30 June 2022 (from erstwhile notified date of 30 June 2021), arising due to COVID-19
pandemic (‘COVID-19 rent related concessions’) need not be treated as lease modification. The amendment did not have
any material impact on financial statements of the Group.

Amendments consequent to issue of Conceptual Framework for Financial reporting under Ind AS (Conceptual
Framework)

e Ind AS 102 Share Based Payments - Amended the definition of ‘liabilities’ to ‘a present obligation of the entity to
transfer an economic resource as a result of past events’,

o Ind AS 103 Business Combinations - The MCA clarified that for the purpose of this Ind AS, acquirers are required
to apply the definitions of an asset and a liability given in the Framework for Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements with Indian Accounting Standards rather than the Conceprual Framework.

e Ind AS 114 Regulatory Deferral Accounts - The amendment added a foornote against the term ‘reliable’ used in
the Ind AS 114. The footnote clarifies that term “faithful representation’ used in the Conceptual Framework
encompasses the main characteristics that the Framework for Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
with Indian Accounting Standards called ‘reliability’. However, for the purpose of this Ind AS, the term ‘reliable’
would be based on the requirements of Ind AS 8.

e Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - The MCA clarified that the definttion of term
‘hability’ in this Ind AS is not being revised following the revision of the definition of hability in the Conceptual
Framework.

o Ind AS 38 Intangible Assets - The MCA clarified that the definition of an ‘asset’ in this Ind AS is not being revised
[ 1 vision of the definition of asset in the Conceptual Framework.

o ation for and FEvaluation of Mineral Resources; Ind AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements;
Mdupting policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors and Ind AS 34 Interim Financial
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Reporting - The reference to the Framework for Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements with Indian
Accountng Standards has been substituted with reference to the Conceptual Framework.

The above amendments did not have any material impact on the financial statements of the Group.

Recent accounting pronouncements which are not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 23 March 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from 01 April 2022, as below:

Ind AS 103 — Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilies assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceprual Framework for Financial
Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India at the acquisition date. These changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. The Group does

not expect the amendment to have any significant impact on its financial statements.

Ind AS 16 — Proceeds before intended use

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received
from selling 1tems produced while the company 1s preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an ennty will recognise
such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The Group does not expect the amendments to have any impact on

its financial statements.

Ind AS 37 — Onerous Contracts - costs of fulfilling a contract

The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’.
Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct
labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment 1s essentially a
clarification and the Group does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact on its financial statements.

Ind AS 109 = Annual improvements to Ind AS (2021)
The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in assessing
whether to derecognise a financial liability. The Group does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact on

its financial statements.
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Best Crop Science Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at 31 Mar 2024
(INR in Millions, unless stated otherwise)

CIN : U24299DL2021PTC385735

3B Capital Work-in-progress

Particulars Amount
As at 01 Apr 2022 43.80
Additions 2837
Deletions.
As at 31 Mar 2023 72.16
As at 01 Apr 2023 72.16
Additions 2527
Deletions 53.63
As at 31 Mar 2024* 43.80
*pertains to construction works relating to plant & machinery
Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
31 Mar 202,
3 Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Projects in progress 14.60 4380 - - 58.39
To be completed in* - . a .
Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
31 Mar 2024
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Projects in progress 43.80 - - 43.80
To be completed in* - : -
*there is no cost overrun against the projections made by the company
3C Right to use Asset
Particulars Amount
Gross block
As at 01 Apr 2022 106.00
Additions
Adjustments on account of remeasurement/modification 253.35
As at 31 Mar 2023 359.35
Gross block
As at 01 Apr 2023 369,35
Additions
Revaluation through revaluation reserve 44.00
Adjustments on account of remeasurement/modification -
As at 31 Mar 2024 403.35
Accumulated depreciation
As at 01 Apr 2022 0.94
Depreciation 161
Disposals -
As at 31 Mar 2023 2.56
Accumulated depreciation
As at 01 Apr 2023 2.56
Depreciation 5.57
Disposals
As at 31 Mar 2024 8.13
Net carrying amount
As at 01 Apr 2023 356.79
As at 31 Mar 2024 395,22

Notes:

a Below table represents the Title deeds of immavable properties not held in the name of the Company:

Whether titl holder is a
Description of item of Gross carrying | Title deeds held et e deed holda Property r_.aru Reason for not being held in
1 i the s f promoter, director or relative of since which 1hé fia f the C. .
property value n the name ol p 1 director or employee of date e name of the Company
- 4 The nrle deeds are held in the namg of
Building situated at C-6,7 & A e T g :
8, Industrial Area, UPSIDC, 10,60,00,000.00 Ba;t Crop| No 28-August-21 Best .(.rup Saence LLP :hh.ELh were|
i Science LLP transferred as a result of change in
Gajraula Il, Amroha, UP . y b o
constitunion from LLP ro company

For Best Crop Science Pyt
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Best Crop Science Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at 31 Mar 2024
(INR in Millions, unless stated otherwise)

CIN : U24299DL2021PTC385735

Particulars Amount
4 Intangible assets CIB License Total
Gross carrying amount
As at 01 Apr 2022 0.62 0.62
Additions 0.21 0.21

Disposals

As at 31 Mar 2023 0.83 0.83

As at 01 Apr 2023 0.83 0.83

Additions 0.40 0.40

Disposals -

As at 31 Mar 2024 1.23 1.23

Accumulated amortisation

As at 01 Apr 2022 . 0.12 0.12
Amortisation 0.08 0.08
Disposals

As at 31 Mar 2023 0.19 0.19

As at 01 Apr 2023 0.19 0.19
Amortisation 0.09 0.09
Disposals - -

As at 31 Mar 2024 0.28 0.28

Net carrying amount

As at 31 Mar 2023 0.64 0.64

As at 31 Dec 2023 0.95 0.95

§ _Intangible asset under development

As at 31st Mar As at 31 Mar

Particulars 2024 2023
Opening Balance 0.10 0.16
Additions 0.46 0.15
Deletions 0.31 0.21
Closing Balance 0.25 0.10

“pertains to product licenses applied to Central Insecticides Board but not yet alloted in the name of the Company.

Notes:
(a) Intangibles under development ageing schedule as at 31 Mar 2023 and 31 Mar 2024

Amount in under development for a period of

Particulars Lessthan1Year 1-2years 2-3years More than 3 Total
years

31-Mar-24 0.46 - - - 0.46

31-Mar-23 0.10 - - = 0.10

(b) There are no such project under intangibles under development, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its
cost compared to its original plan as of 31 Mar 2024 and 31 March 2023.

For Best Crop Science Pvt. Ltd. For Best Crop Scicnce Pyt
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Best Crop Science Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at 31 Mar 2024
(INR in Millions, unless stated otherwise)

CIN : U24299DL2021PTC385735

6 Other financial assets

Non-current Current
Particulars As at As at As at As at
31-Mar-24 31-03-2023 31-Mar-24 31-03-2023
Advance to employees - - 0.08 0.76
Advance to Others (unsecured considered doubtful) (See note below) - - 1.08 0.61
Security deposits
Unsecured, considered good 13.45 4.27
Unsecured, considered doubtful - - - -
Less: Loss Allowance for security deposit - - - -
13.45 4.27 1.16 1.37
Note: The company has made multiple followups for recovery of said amount. However, after multiple folowups company is unable to recover the said amount
7 Other assets
Non-current Current
Particulars As at As at As at As at
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Advance to suppliers - - 8.09 35.78
Income lax payable /(Refundable) 19.43 -
Copital Advance (Related Parties) 237.70
Prepaid expenses - - 337 362
- Security . %
Balance with statutory/government authorities - - 141.91 123.82
Imprest advance - - 0.13 033
Other Current Assets - - 2.55 033
Other deposits - N
Ui , Consi doubtfi - - 1.00 1.00
Less: Provision for doubtful deposit - - (1.00) (1.00)
19.43 237.70 156.05 163.86
8 Inventories
Particulars As at As at
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Packing Material 36.67 64.48
Finshed Goods 2,367.28 843.64
Raw Material 250.35 900.85
Work In Progress 81.68 548.18
2,735.97 2,357.14
9 Trade receivables
. As at As at
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good 1,337.97 1,161.23
Credil impaired - +
1,337.97 1,161.23
Less: Inter Balance s
1,337.97 1,161.23
Trade Receivables ageing schedule on 31 Mar 2024
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 6 months 6 months-1 years 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
a) Undisp trade receivab
- considered good 731.14 604.56 227 1,337.97
- which have significant increase in credit risk
- which are credit impaired
b) Disputed trade receivables
- considered good - - % -
- which have significant increase in credit risk
- which are credit impaired - - - - =
731.14 604.56 227 - - 1,337.97
Trade Receivables ageing schedule on 31 Mar 2023
Particulars Outstanding for following from due date of payment Total
Less than 6 months 6 months-1 years 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
a) Undisputed trade I
- considered good 99278 67.79 10067 1.161.23
- which have significant increase in credit risk
- which are credit impaired . E - _
b) Disputed trade receivables
- considered good - - - - -
- which have significant increase in credit risk
- which are credit impaired - . - - % .
992.78 67.79 100.67 - - 1,161.23

For Best Crop Science

For Best Crop
Pvt. Ltd.
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Best Crop Science Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at 31 Mar 2024
(INR in Millions. unless stated atherwise)

CIN : U24299DL2021PTC385735

10 Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars At S
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Balances with banks ']
On current accounts 321 37.85
Cash on hand 042 0.56
3.63 38.41
11 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Particulars Asat As at
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Qn deposit accounts 33.76 13.52
33.76 13.52
Bank deposits (due for maturity within 3 months from the reporting date) - -
Bank deposits (due for maturity after 3 months upto 12 months from the reporting date) 33.76 13.52
Bank deposits (due for maturity after 12 months from the reporting dale) - -
33.76 13.52
12 Loans
Current
As at 31 March As at 31 March
2024 2023
Considered good, unsecured
Loan to related parties(refer note 39 and 48} 237.711 -
237.71 =

Below table represents thmangeriale details of loan granted to promoters directors, key managerial personnel and related parties which are repayable on demand as at 31 March 2024

Name of the Borrower Relationship

Percentage to
Amount of loan or advance the total loans

in the nature of loan and advances in Terms

outstanding the nature of
loans
Sudarshan Farm Chemical Pvi Lid Fellow subsidiary 23771 10000 Interest bearing and
repayable on
demand
13 Equity share capital
i As at As at
Particul
roulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Authorised
50000000 equity shares of INR 10/- each(Previous year 6850000 equity shares of INR 10/- each) 50000 68 50
500.00 68.50
Issued, subscribed and fully paid -up
6850000 equity shares of INR 10/- each (Previous year 6850000 equity shares of INR 10/- each) 68.50 68.50
68.50 68.50
a) Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:
As at As at
Particulars 31-Mar-2024 31st Mar 2023
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Equity shares issued, subscribed and fully =
paid up
Al the beginning of the year 68,50,000 68500 68,50,000 685 00
Issued during the year . 3 - <
At the end of the year 68,50,000 685.00 68,50,000.00 685.00

b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity share having a par value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of the equily share is entitled 1o one vote per share and is entitled to dividend, declared if any

The paid up equity shares of the Company rank pari-passu in all respects, including dividend. The

the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of

preferential amounts, if any The distribution will be in proportion 10 the number of equily shares held by the sharehoiders

c) Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

final dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in
the equity shares will be entitied o remaining assels of the Company, after distribution of all

As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar-2024 31 Mar 2023
No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding
Equity shares of INR 10/- each fully paid-up
held by
Best Agrolife Limited 68,49,999 100% 68,49,999 100%
Vimal Kumar® 1 - 1 =
68,50,000 100% 68,50,000 100%
* As a nominee of Best Agrolife Limited
d) Details of shares held by promoters in the Company
As at As at % change in
31st Mar-2024 31 Mar 2023 shareholding
No. of shares % of holding No. of shares % of holding
Best Agrolife Limited 68,49,999 100.00% 68,49,999 100.00% 0.00%
Vimal Kumar 1 0.00% 1 0.00% 0.00%

* As a nominee of Best Agrolife
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14 Other equity

a) Reserves and Surplus

Particulars v paat
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Retained earnings

Opening Balance 1,654 82 438.71

Add: Profil for the year 194.50 866.23

Add. Other comprehensive income for the year (net) 203.99 349 87

Balance as the end of reporting year 2,053.31 1,654.82

Retained earnings are the accumulated losses earned by the Company till date, as adjusted for distribution to owners.

Borrowings
Non-current Current
Particulars As at As at As at As at
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Term loans (secured) from banks
Indian rupee term loans 189.28 2.478.50 852 44 1,069 48
Term loans (secured) from NBFC
Indian rupee term loans - 5000
189.28 2,478.50 852.44 1.119.48
Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings (65.77) (521 19) 65.77 52.12
123.50 1,957.31 918.21 1,171.59
Term loans (unsecured) from Related parties
Indian rupee term loans 518.49 603.43
Term loans (unsecured) from others
Indian rupee term loans 55.00 55.00
178.50 2,012.31 1,436.70 1,775.02
Note:
There are no charges or salisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
Nature of Security Terms of repayment
Term loan from banks
Term loans from Axis Bank has been obtained by Best Crop Science Private Limited against hypothecation of property Repayable in 10 to 48 equal monthly/ quarterly instaliment of 2 727
situated C-6,7 and 8, Industrial Area, UPSIDC, Garaula Il Amroha, UP lacs to # BO lacs.
Rale of interest at 7.95% to 9.25% per annum
Term loan from Yes Bank has been obtained by Best Crop Science Private Limited against hypothecation of property Repayable in 60 equal monthly installments of % 18.50 lacs
siluated C-6,7 and 8, Industrial Area, UPSIDC, Garaula Il Amrcha, UP Rate of interest at 9.50 % per annum
Unsecured loan from related party
Unsecured loan had been obtained from Mr. Vimal Alawadhi, Managing Director Repayable after 12 months in equal monthly instaliments to be agreed
between the parties. The same has been repaid completely in the
current year,
Unsecured loan from others Tt e
Unsecured loan has been obtained by Best Crop Science Private Limited from Transworld Finvest Private Limited Repayable after 3 years in equal installments to be agreed between the
parties.

Rate of interest at 11.00% per annum chargeable from 1 April 2022

Cash credit facilities have been obtained from banks which has been secured by first pari passu charge on present and future current assets and movable property, plant and equipment except
vehicles. The facilities of Holding Company have been taken from five banks which are secured by personal guarantee of promoter Mr. Vimal Alawadhi, Mrs Vandana Alawadhi and Mr Kamal
Kumar and director Mr. Shuvendu Satpathy and one loan is secured by guarantee given by Pavas Chemicals Private Limited of  Nil lacs (previous year ¥ 3,700.00 lacs) on behalf of the Holding
Company These loans carry interest rate of 7.60% to 11 70% per annum (previous year 8.54% to 11.65% per annum)

The facilities of Best Crop Science Private Limited have been taken from three banks which are secured by personal guarantee of promoter Mr. Vimal Alawadhi, Mr. Raj Kumar, Mr, Gaurav Sharma
and Mrs Vandana Alawadhi and corporale guarantee of Holding Company. The loan carries an interest rate of 9.25% per annum

The facilities of Seedlings India Private Limited have been taken from one bank which are secured by personal guarantee of promoter Mr. Vimal Alawadhi and Mrs Vandana Alawadhi and corporate
guarantee of Holding Company and Pavas Chemicals Private Limited. The loan carries an interest rate of 7.15% per annum,

Working capital loan facility was obtained from banks during the year which has been secured by first pari passu charge on present and future current assets and movable property, plant and
equipment except vehicles. The facilities taken from three banks and one financial institution are secured by personal guarantee of promoter Mr. Vimal Alawadhi and Mrs Vandana Alawadhi and
director Mr. Shuvendu Satpathy on behalfl of the Holding Company. These loan carry interes! rate of 6.75% to 8.80% per annum (previous year: 8.05% per annum)

Facility of standby letter of credit at the rate of 1% commission had been obtained from banks has been secured by deposits with the banks and first pari passu charge on present and future current
assets and movable property, plant and equipment except vehicles. The same has been repaid during the year.

The management of the Company represents that the quarterly statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks and financial institutions were in agreement with the books of
accounts

Notes:
The Group has not defaulted in repayment of interest during the current financial year. Further, there have been no default in repayment of loan and no breaches in the loan covenants of any

interesl-beanng loans and borrowing in the current year
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Other financial liabilities

Non-current Current
Particulars As at As at As at As at
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Payable to employees - - 15.93 11.16
- - 15.93 11.16
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
; As at As at
!
Pasticulara 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
DTA arising on account of:
Property, Plant and Equipment 17.54 7.94
Provision for Gratuity 240 1.78
Loss Allowance for security deposit -
Provision for doubtful deposit 0.25 0.25
Provision for Bonus 0.78 078
MSME DISALLOWANCE 3.60 -
Deferred Tax Assets 24.58 10.75
DTL arising on account of
Revaluation of land and building (186.28) (118.05)
Deferred Tax Liability (186.28) (118.05)
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) (161.70) (107.31)
Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
Particulars As at As at
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Income tax payable /(Refundable) 26.18
- 26.18
Provisions
Non-current Current
Particulars As at As at As at As at
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Defined Benefit Obligations
Gratuity 6.99 6.17 1.06 0.89
6.99 6.17 1.06 0.89
Other Current liabilities
; As at As at
Fatiodlary 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Statutory dues:
Tax collected at source payable &
Tax deducted at source payable 1.95 2.55
Other statutory dues 0.83 0.81
2.78 3.36
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18 Trade payables

Particulars At Av ot
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note below) 14.32 -
Other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,985.79 1.091.16
Less: Inter Balance "
2,000.11 1,091.16
Dues to Micro enterprises and Small enterprises
: As at As at
P I
Wi 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small suppliers as at the end of the year:
Principal 1432
- Interest
The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
(MSMED Act, 2006)
The amounts of the payments made to micro and small suppliers beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed date during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding
Trade payable ageing schedule on 31 Mar 2024
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
a) Undisputed trade payables
Micro enterprises and small enterprises 14,32 - - 14.32
Others 1,985.70 0.09 1,985.79
2,000.02 0.09 - 2,000.11
b) Disputed trade payables
Micro enterprises and small enterprises . -
Others . s “ -
Trade payable ageing schedule on 31 Mar 2023
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
a) Undisputed trade payables
Micro enterprises and small enterprises -
Others 1,091.16 - 1,091.16
1,091.16 - - 1,091.16

b) Disputed trade payables
Micro enterprises and small enterprises
Others
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22 Revenue from operations

For the period

< For the year ended
P
MHINSS 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Sale of products
Finished goods 8,573.23 5,723.98
Less: Stock Transfer .
8,573.23 5,723.98
23 Other income
Particulars For the year ended For the period
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Interest on FDR 0.91 0.34
Balance written off 0.50
-Short & Excess - 0.01
Containers Usage Charges 0.36 <
1.27 0.84
24 Cost of materials consumed
Particulars For the year ended For the period
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Raw material and packing material consumed
Inventories at the beginning of the year 965.32 798.75
Add: Purchases during the year (net) 7,850.85 4,150.83
Less: Inventories at the end of the year 287.02 965.32
8,529.16 3,984.75
24A Changes in inventories
For the year ended For the period
Ritfcuims 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Opening stock 1,391.82 1,306.22
Less: Closing Stock 2,448.95 1,391.82
(1,057.13) (85.60)
25 Employee benefit expense
For the year ended For the period
Particutars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Salaries & Wages 133.08 84.06
Bonus Paid 275 4.87
ESIC/PF 5.20 4.35
Expenses related to post- employment defined benefit plan 2.49 1.56
Directors remuneration 15.64 14.73
Staff welfare expenses 5.15 1.74
164.31 111.31
26 Finance costs
A For the year ended For the period
Particulary 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Interest on borrowings measured at amortised cost 127.00 165.69
127.00 155.69
ﬁ
27 Depreciation and amaortisation expense
; For the year ended For the period
CAIicie 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Depreciati n.on property, plant and equipment (Refer to Note 3A) FO rB est Cr s ) 124.64 76.75
Depfe "ibrionrﬂ‘:gmto use (Refer to Note 3B) Op Sciepée Pvt. L t857 1.61
PR :
Am on PRI aseets RefertoNote e Pyt | g 0.00 0.08
/_ /N O\ ) 130.30 78.44
" 1S6LLIN ) & "
% — ractor
. '-A__r_:-\ / MNir a( f or
NI A
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28 Other expenses

Particulars

For the year ended

For the period

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
General Office And Other Miscellaneous Expenses 2.04 6.42
Rent 6.47 218
Repairs And Maintenance
Plant And Equipment 28.98 53.87
Buildings 3.89 263
Others 519 i
Travelling And Conveyance 10.28 5.51
Legal And Professional 30.62 14.94
Auditor's Remuneration 0.33 0.22
Consumption Of Small Ware And Others 80.52 54.58
Insurance 12.54 8.68
Printing And Stationery 0.68 0.38
Security And Service Charges 62.05 49.79
Bank Charges 13.37 18.92
Other Expenses 30.11 12.53
Petrol And Diesel 244 3.40
Business Promotion Expenses - 7.80
Electricity Charges 78.88 48.86
Freight And Cartage 35.59 17.23
Generator Hiring Charges 3.24 297
Loading / Unloading Charges 1.70 0.99
Telephone Expenses 0.13 0.11
Misc Exp 135 .
410.40 319.18
Note - Auditor's remuneration
For the year ended For the period
Paticuliny 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
As auditor
Statutory audit 0.33 0.22
Outlays .
0.33 0.22

For Best Crop Science Pvt. Ltd.

—

Director




28

Best Crop Science Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at 31 Mar 2024
(INR in Millions, unless stated otherwise)

CIN : U24299DL2021PTC385735

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

An amount of Rs. 2.0088/- (previous: Rs.1.185/-) has been recognised as an expense in respect of the Company's contribution to Employee's Provident Fund and other funds deposited

with the relevant authorities and has been charged to the Stalement of Profit and Loss

Defined benefit plans

The Company operales a gratuity plan wherein every employee is entited to the benefit. Gratuity is Ppayable to all eligible employees (who have completed 5 years or more of service) of

the Company on retirement, separation, death or permanent disablement, in terms of the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

The following table sets out the status of the gratuily plan as required under Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits

i. Changes in present value of defined benefit obligation:

As at As at
Particulars 31 Mar 2024 31 Mar 2023
Present value of obligation as at beginning of the year 7.05 3.98
Acquisition adjustment - -
Interest cost 048 027
Current service cost 201 128
Benefits paid -
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognised in other comprehensive income (1.50) 1.52
Present value of obligation as at end of year 8.04 7.058

ii. Acturial assumptions
A. Economic assumptions

The principal assumplions are the discount rate and salary growth rate. The discount rate is generally based upon the markel yields available on Government bonds at the accounting

date with a term that matches that of the liabilities and the salary growth rate takes into account inflation, seniority,
assumptions are as follows:

promotion and other relevant factors on long term basis. Valuation

Particulars 31 Mar 2024 31 Mar 2023
Discounting rate 715% 7.30%
Future salary increase 10.00% 10.00%
B. Demographic assumptions

Particulars 31 Mar 2024 31 Mar 2023
i) Retirement age (years) - For office staff 68.00 68.00
i) Retirement age (years) - For factory staff 60.00 60.00

ii) Mortality table IALM (2012 - 14) IALM (2012 - 14)
i) A Withdrawal rate Withdrawal rate
ii) Ages per annum(%) per annum(%)
For all ages 20 20
Assumption regarding future mortality have been based on published statistics and mortality tables
lil. (a) Expense recognised in profit or loss:
Particulars For the period ended For the period ended
31 Mar 2024 31 Mar 2023
Employee benefit exp
(a) Current service cost 201 1.28
(b) Interest cost 0.48 0.27
2.49 1.56
{b) Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income
Particulars For the period ended For the period ended
31 Mar 2024 31 Mar 2023
Actuarial (gain)ioss on defined benefit obligation (1.50) 1.52
(1.50) 1.52
=L
Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 0.99 3.08

Iv. Reconciliation statement of expense In the Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars For the period ended For the period ended
31 Mar 2024 31 Mar 2023
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 8.04 10.14
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year (7.08) (3.98)
Benefits paid
Expenses recognised in the statement of Profit or Loss 0.98 6.18
tion of closing net liability at the end of year -
= ; For Best Crop SCIEnce Pyt ol Bl Asal
For Best Crop Scisnce Pvt. Ltd. 0 e b2 31 Mar 2023
@) \
hi!it’y (amount due within one year) -~ 106 0.88
L ﬁlxﬁabiltty (amount due over one year) 1 //,p 6.99 6.17
Lirector

Pa
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8.05 7.06
vil. Sensitivity analysis
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at 13 Oct 2021 is as shown below:
Impact of the change in discount rate on defined benefit obligation
Particulars As at As at
31 Mar 2024 31 Mar 2023
a) Impact due to increase of 1% 7.66 6.72
b) Impact due to decrease of 1% 8.48 743
JImpact of the change in salary increase on defined benefit obligation
Particulars As at As at
31 Mar 2024 31 Mar 2023
a) Impact due to increase of 1% 843 7.37
b) Impact due to decrease of 1% 769 6.76

The sensitivity analysis is based on a change in above assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. The changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When
calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions, the same method ( present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting year) has been applied when calculating the provision for defined benefit plan recognised in the Balance Sheet.

The method and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the previous years.

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it provides an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

Risk exposure:

The defined benefit plan is expected to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Change in discount rates: A decrease is discount yield will increase plan liabilities

Mortality table: The gratuity plan obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member, so increase in life expectancy will result in a increase in plan liabilities.

For Best Crop gcience Pvt. Ltd.

—
=\ '\f‘?f\r
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Related party disclosures

(1) List of related parties and nature of relationship where control exists:

Parent and Ultimate Controlling Party:
Best Agrolife Limited

(a) Parent Company:
Best Agrolife Limited

(b) Key management personnel:
Gaurav Sharma
Vimal Kumar
Pramod Karlekar
Vandana Alawadhi
Chetna

(c) Other related parties - Entities which are joint ventures or subsidiaries or where trol/:

Pavas Chemical Pvt Ltd

Seedlings India Pvt Ltd (Fellow Subsidiary)

Sudarshan Farm Chemicals India Pvt Ltd (Fellow Subsidiary)

Kashmir Chemicals (Fellow subsidiary)

Ill) Transactions with related parties during the year ended 31 Mar 2024

ignificant infi

exists of parties as given in (1) and (ll) above :

Description

Key managerial personnel

Parent Company

Entities controlled by Parent or
ultimate controlling party

31-Mar-24

31-Mar-23

31-Mar-24

31-Mar-23

31-Mar-24

31-Mar-23

Compensation to key managerial personnel

Vandana Alawadhi
Gaurav Sharma
Raj Kumar
Pramod Karlekar
Chetna

Vimal Kumar

Best Agro Life Ltd
Purchases

Cross Charge
Sales

Interest

Seedling India Pvt Itd
Purchases
Sales

Sudarshan Farm Chemical India Pvt Ltd
Purchase

Sale

Rent

Advance for Fixed Assets

Loan Given

Kashmir Chemicals 21,10.2023
Sale

Vimal Kumar
Rent Expenses

Pavas Chemical Pvt Ltd
Purchases

Balance outstanding as at the year end:
Best Agrolife Ltd

Loan fron Best Agrolife Itd

Gaurav Sharma

Vimal Kumar

Kashmir chemicals

Vanadana Alawadhi

Pramod Karlekar

Seedling India Pvt Ltd

Sudarshan Farm Chemical India Pvt Ltd

6.00
2.57

7.01

1.77

021

0.50
0.45

233

0.12

0.31
0.41

5,527.26
15.05
599.13
6.19

4,726.40

96.44
83.99
2.40

237.71

122.46

2,199.73
7756.35
44.49

110.77
1,385.99

59.68
7873
0.99
237.70

&\ For Best Crop Scien

ce Pvt, Ltq.

—

Diractor
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30 Disclosures related to key financial ratios:

Nature

As at As at 31 Mar 2023
31 Mar 2024

A Current Assets
B Current Liabilities
C Long Term Debt
D Total shareholder's Equity
E Net operating income
F Total Debt service
G Ordinary shareholder's Fund
H Cost of goods sold
I Average inventory
J Net credit sales
K Average accounts receivable
L Net credit purchases
M Average accounts payable
N Net annual sales
O Net working capital
P Net profit after tax
Q Earning before interest and tax
R Capital employed
S Net return on investment
T Cost of investment

U Current Ratio

V Debt-Equity Ratio

W Debt Service Coverage Ratio

X Return on Equity Ratio

Y Inventory turnover ratio

Z Trade Receivables turnover ratio
AA Trade payables turnover ratio
AB Net capital turnover ratio
AC Net profit ratio
AD Return on Capital employed
AE Return on investment.

A/B
CD
E/F
P/D
H/l

JIK

L/M
N/O
N/P
QR
SIT

For Best Crop S

cience Pvt. Ltd.

e
Nirector

FOF Best Crop

4,506.25 30451.86
3,456.58 25917.71
1,615.21 17948.93
2,121.81 5072.14
8,673.23 14416.05
- 0
2,121.81 5072.14
8,529.16 17330.49
482.66 1771.45
8,573.23 14416.05
668.98 3814.2
7,850.85 21775.09
1,000.05 4200.46
8,573.23 14416.05
1,049.67 4534.14
194.50 1978.83
397.46 3292.78
2,121.81 5071.14
0.91 0.34
33.76 13.52
1.30 1.17
0.76 3.54
0.09 0.39
17.67 9.78
12.82 3.78
7.85 5.18
8.17 3.18
44.08 7.29
0.19 0.65
0.03 0.03
SC.‘E": Nce Py




1. The ratios have been computed as below:

Current Ratio = Current Assets

Current Liabilities
Debt-Equity Ratio = Long Term Debt

Total shareholder's Equity
Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Net operating income

Total Debt service*

Return on Equity Ratio = Profit After Tax

Ordinary shareholder's Fund

Inventory turnover ratio = Cost of goods sold

Average inventory

Trade Receivables turnover ratio = Net credit sales

Average accounts receivable

Trade payables turnover ratio = Net credit purchases

Average accounts payable

Net capital turnover ratio = Net annual sales

Net working capital
Net profit ratio = Net profit after tax

Net sales

Return on Capital employed = Earning before interest and tax

capital employed
Return on investment = Net return on investment

cost of investment
* Total Debt service is the short term debt obligation

For Best Crop Science Pvt. Ltd.

N—

Yiractor

For Best Crop Sc

ience Pyt

:”““mﬁilil !IIJ




Note 31- Earnings per share (EPS)
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

&

As at As at
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 398.50 1,216.11
Weighted average number of equity shares used for 68,50,000.00 68,50,000.00
computing Earning per Share
Basic and diluted earnings per share 58.17 177.53

For Best Crop Science Pvt. Ltd.

N

Niractor
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32 Other statutory information

(a) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Comp

property.

(b) The Company do not have any transactions with struck off companies.
(c) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction whic
(d) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency
(e) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies),

understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified i

Beneficiaries) or

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
(f) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies

recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in

Beneficiaries) or

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficia
(g) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the boo
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For K Sumit & co
Chartered Ag -

Place: New Delhi
Date: 23/05/2024

h is yet to be registered with Registrar of Compa
during the financial year.
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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